# MASTER OF LIBERAL STUDIES Student Handbook 2023 - 2024



Arizona State University School of Applied Sciences and Arts College of Integrative Sciences and Arts 651 E. University Drive Tempe, AZ 85287-0604 480-965-1970 <u>SASAGrad@asu.edu</u> <u>https://cisa.asu.edu/mls</u>

## **CONTENTS:**

THE ASU MASTER of LIBERAL STUDIES PROGRAM	3
DEGREE OVERVIEW	3
MyASU	3
ASU EMAIL	4
STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT	4
ACADEMIC INTEGRITY	6
PROFESSIONAL ETHICS	6
CULTURE of RESPECT	6
SEXUAL HARASSMENT	7
TUITION COSTS, RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS and FEES per DEGREE	7
SATISFACTORY ACADEMIC PROGRESS KEY POLICIES	7
GPA AND COURSE GRADES	8
INCOMPLETE GRADES	8
GRADE DISPUTES	9
LEAVE of ABSENCE REQUESTS	9
CONTINUOUS REGISTRATION/ENROLLMENT	.10
TIMELINESS, PARTICIPATION, and COMMITMENT	.10
ACADEMIC PROGRESS	.11
ACADEMIC PROBATION	.11
WITHDRAWALS	.12
TRANSFER CREDIT	.13
GRADUATION AND DEGREE CONFERRAL	.14
STUDENT SERVICES and RESOURCES	.15
INTERACTIVE PLAN of STUDY (iPOS)	.19
CONCURRENT DEGREES	.19
COURSE DESCRIPTIONS	.20
THE APPLIED PROJECT	.21

## THE ASU MASTER of LIBERAL STUDIES PROGRAM

The MLSt program offers students interested in creative, critical and integrative approaches to the study of human ideas and values an opportunity to explore, experiment with, and integrate a range of liberal studies insights.

The program is intended for students seeking a graduate degree that explores the integration of humanities questions with relevant political, religious, social and scientific insights. Throughout the program, students develop concrete creative and critical tools to respond to these urgent questions of the contemporary moment. This interdisciplinary approach trains students in the skills needed for the jobs of the future: communication, research and an understanding of the diverse and changing world.

#### **DEGREE OVERVIEW**

#### Master of Liberal Studies Degree requirements:

The MLSt Degree is a 30-credit-hour program including a culminating experience. The program includes 9 credits of core courses, 15 credits of electives, and 6 credits of culminating experience, including an Applied Project.

#### MyASU

**Portal:** Your my.asu.edu portal is your go-to place for information about courses, transcripts, transportation, student success and support, finances, university policies, and the academic calendar. Please take time to familiarize yourself with all MyASU areas.

**Profile:** Update your address, phone number, email information, or add guests, such as a parent, so they can look for FERPA-protected information, including grades.

**My Classes:** Click on the name of each course to access the corresponding Canvas content. This is where you will see the syllabus, find links to readings, and submit assignments. Take a few minutes to familiarize yourself with the structure of each course.

**Final Transcript**: If you submitted a transcript for admission to the program before you graduated, send your final transcript with your degree posted.

**Academic Integrity Module**: ASU's Graduate College module reviewing academic integrity expectations. Please complete as soon as possible. Please note, this module explains the university-wide policy.

Academic Calendar (bottom right box): This has important dates you need to monitor, including when classes begin, last day to register or drop/add classes, tuition and fee payment deadlines, holidays, withdrawal deadlines, schedule of classes available, and when to enroll.

**ASU Campus Services:** This includes Health and Wellness Resources, such as health insurance, counseling, disability services; Transportation, such as parking permits, METRO Light Rail, U- Pass and campus shuttles; Student Success and Support, such as Student Accessibility and Inclusive Learning Services (SAILS), tutoring, and student success centers; and Career Services. Please note these job resources are university-wide and not specific to a particular program offered by the Faculty of Leadership and Integrative Studies.

#### **ASU Online Services:**

This includes Student Success and Support, such as Student Accessibility and Inclusive Learning Services (SAILS), tutoring, and student success centers; and Career Services. Please note these job resources are university-wide and not specific to a particular program offered by the Faculty of Leadership and Integrative Studies.

#### ASU EMAIL

All MLSt students are required to have an active ASU email account. You can forward the ASU email to another preferred account (if you wish). It is essential that you check the ASU email account at least three times per week so you don't miss important notices. (If you are an online student, we recommend you check it every weekday.) Arizona State University and the Master of Liberal Studies conduct their business via ASU email only.

Check your MyASU priority tasks for messages and holds from the university. **Students are independently responsible** for managing their tuition payments, finances, assignment deadlines, graduation process, and tracking university academic calendar deadlines.

## STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT

At the graduate level, it is expected that students are familiar with these issues and that each student assumes personal responsibility for their work. When in doubt about appropriate conduct, students should review <u>ASU Academic Integrity Policies and Resources</u> and consult an instructor or advisor to seek clarification as needed. As outlined by ASU's policy, a student

may be found to have engaged in academic dishonesty if that student:

- 1. Engages in any form of academic deceit
- Refers to materials or sources or uses devices (e.g., computer drives, audio recorders, camera phones, text messages, crib sheets, calculators, solution manuals, materials from previous classes, or commercial research services) not authorized by the instructor for use during the Academic Evaluation or assignment
- 3. Possesses, reviews, buys, sells, obtains, or uses, without appropriate authorization, any materials intended to be used for an Academic Evaluation or assignment in advance of its administration
- 4. Acts as a substitute for another person in any Academic Evaluation or assignment
- 5. Uses a substitute in any Academic Evaluation or assignment
- 6. Depends on the aid of others, including other students or tutors, in connection with any Academic Evaluation or assignment to the extent that the work is not representative of the student's abilities
- 7. Provides inappropriate aid to another person in connection with any Academic Evaluation or assignment, including the unauthorized use of camera phones, text messages, photocopies, notes or other means to copy or photograph materials used or intended for Academic Evaluation
- 8. Engages in plagiarism or self-plagiarism
- 9. Uses material from the Internet or any other source without full and appropriate attribution, citation
- 10. Permits their work to be submitted by another person in connection with any Academic Evaluation or assignment, without authorization
- 11. Claims credit for or submits work done by another
- 12. Signs an attendance sheet for another student, allows another student to sign on the student's behalf, or otherwise participates in gaining credit for attendance for oneself or another without actually attending
- 13. Falsifying or misrepresenting hours or activities in relationship to an internship, field experience, clinical activity or similar activity
- 14. Attempts to influence or change any Academic Evaluation, assignment or academic record for reasons having no relevance to academic achievement

**ABOR Published Student Code of Conduct:** All students are expected to adhere to the Arizona Board of Regents Student Code of Conduct and university policies and procedures: <u>https://eoss.asu.edu/dos/srr/codeofconduct</u>

We require that students **do not disrupt classes**. In discussions, we request students to respond thoughtfully and respectfully to each other, and to their instructors and guests. In our academic world, we can disagree with one another but still be respectful of others. Sarcasm, insults, sneers,

and other derogatory or disruptive language will not be tolerated.

## ACADEMIC INTEGRITY

The School of Applied Sciences and Arts has a zero-tolerance policy toward academic dishonesty that is enforced within every course and educational activity offered or sanctioned by the school. Any allegation of academic dishonesty will be referred to the College of Integrative Sciences and Arts Academic Integrity Officer for review and recommendation to the dean of the school. If any student is found to have engaged in academic dishonesty in any form – including but not limited to cheating, plagiarizing and fabricating – that student shall receive a grade of XE for the class and will be dismissed from the school. There will be no exceptions.

International students who violate academic integrity policies may be dismissed immediately. Being withdrawn from a degree program can have immediate consequences regarding visa status.

#### **PROFESSIONAL ETHICS**

In addition to academic integrity commitments, graduate students in the program must abide by the highest levels of academic ethics. As a graduate student you must understand and observe all procedures and requirements specified by the ASU Graduate College and the Master of Liberal Studies program.

#### **CULTURE of RESPECT**

# The MLSt Culture of Respect is a foundational commitment to the integrity of the classroom community and scholarly environment.

By receiving this handbook, you are agreeing to uphold this foundational commitment in all courses and program environments.

The Culture of Respect means to treat everyone — your peers, instructors, other students, staff, faculty advisors and members of the ASU community — with respect and communicate in a professional manner at all times. This is of utmost importance in community forums, discussions, peer work, and all communication, whether online or in person.

An instructor may withdraw a student from a course with a mark of "W" or assign a grade of "E" when the student's behavior disrupts the educational process. Disruptive class behavior can include derogatory or discriminatory statements in regards to race, ethnicity, gender, sexual orientation, sex, ability, religion, and/or immigration status. It can include aggressive, combative

or threatening language. It can include the inappropriate address of a fellow student or faculty.

Disruptive classroom behavior is defined by the instructor. If a disruptive incident occurs here is the procedure that instructors will follow.

- **First occurrence:** The instructor will notify the student of the disruptive behavior and suggest a corrective approach. No further action taken.
- Second occurrence: The instructor will notify the student of the disruptive behavior. The student will be allowed to continue in class but may immediately lose the privilege of further classroom interactions with other students, including, but not limited to discussions and peer work. An incident of disruptive behavior may be reported to the Dean of Students.
- Third occurrence: The student may be withdrawn with a mark of "W" or be assigned a grade of "E." An incident report of disruptive behavior will be reported to the Dean of Students.

#### SEXUAL HARASSMENT

The University prohibits sexual harassment by employees and students and will not tolerate sexual harassment that interferes with an individual's work or educational performance or creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, learning or residential environment. ASU's sexual harassment policies and procedures can be found online at this address: <a href="https://www.asu.edu/titlelX/">https://www.asu.edu/titlelX/</a>

# TUITION COSTS, RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS and FEES per DEGREE

Online, on-campus and campus-only students in the **Master of Liberal Studies** programs need to declare residency status. Please visit this link for more information on how to determine residency here: https://students.asu.edu/residency.

Once you have determined residency status, please move to ASU's <u>Tuition and Cost Calculator</u> to determine tuition, costs and fees based on residency status.

## SATISFACTORY ACADEMIC PROGRESS KEY POLICIES

All graduate students are expected to make systematic progress toward completion of their degrees. Students are responsible for verifying and tracking satisfactory progress policies as required by their degree program and the Graduate College. If a student fails to satisfy the

requirements, the student may be dismissed from his/her program based on the academic unit's recommendation to the Graduate College.

These policies are outlined below and detailed on the university's Graduate College website: <u>https://graduate.asu.edu/key-policies</u>

## **GPA AND COURSE GRADES**

Faculty of Leadership and Integrative Studies students must maintain a minimum 3.0 cumulative Grade Point Average (GPA) overall and in courses included in their Interactive Plans of Study. Courses taken as an undergraduate at ASU and reserved for use in a graduate degree program are included in the GPA (i.e. a "4+1" program).

If a student's GPA falls below 3.0, the student will be notified in writing and placed on probation. If the student's GPA is not raised to at least a 3.0 by the end of the next semester, a recommendation will be made to Graduate Education to remove the student from the program.

To receive their degrees, students also are required to earn at least a B (3.0) in their culminating experience of a thesis or applied capstone.

#### **INCOMPLETE GRADES**

The grade of "I" (Incomplete) will only be considered by an instructor when a student has been doing acceptable work and is unable to complete a course (e.g., final exam, term paper, or other culminating project) because of illness or other conditions beyond the student's control.

The student must have completed 80 percent of all assignments with a cumulative grade class average of 80 percent or higher to be eligible to request an Incomplete. Terms of Incompletes must be finished in the time frame stipulated in the Incomplete contract or within a maximum period of one year. (After one year, the grade of Incomplete [I] becomes a permanent grade.) Incomplete requests require the approval of the student, faculty of record, and faculty head/program manager.

If you receive an "Incomplete" grade in a graduate-level course (500-level or above) you must complete the necessary work within the time frame stipulated in the Incomplete contract.

If the Incomplete is not removed within the identified term, it will become part of your permanent transcript and cannot be used on a student's iPOS. To receive credit for the course,

the student must repeat the course by re-registering, paying fees and fulfilling all course requirements. This may also delay or prevent a student's graduation.

The form for requesting an Incomplete can be found here: <a href="https://students.asu.edu/forms/incomplete-grade-request">https://students.asu.edu/forms/incomplete-grade-request</a>

Students with more than one Incomplete at any time will be considered "failing to make adequate progress," and will be placed on probation. If the student does not complete the work to remove the Incomplete and earn a letter grade by the end of the calendar year, a recommendation may be made to the Graduate College to remove the student from the program.

#### **GRADE DISPUTES**

If you disagree with a class grade you have received, you have a procedure to question and dispute it. The following steps must be followed by any student seeking to appeal a grade. (This process does not address academic integrity allegations, faculty misconduct or discrimination.) Student grade appeals must be processed in the regular semester immediately following the issuance of the grade in dispute (by commencement for fall or spring), regardless of whether the student is enrolled at the university.

There are two stages to the grade grievance process: the informal process and the formal process. Begin with the informal procedure. Write a thoughtful note and email to your instructor and explain your concerns. Refer to the syllabus and to the assignment descriptions. Express why you think that the grade is incorrect. Keep your note professional, cordial, and focused on the issue. The instructor will reply to your note with explanations.

If you still disagree, contact the director and explain your situation, your original note, and the instructor's responses. This will begin the formal process to appeal.

## LEAVE of ABSENCE REQUESTS

Graduate students planning to discontinue registration for a semester or more must submit a <u>Leave of Absence request via their Interactive Plan of Student (iPOS)</u>. This request must be submitted and approved before the anticipated semester of non-registration. Students may request a maximum of two semesters of leave during their entire program. Having an approved Leave of Absence by the Graduate College will enable students to re-enter their program without reapplying to the university.

Students who do not register for a fall or spring semester without an approved Leave of Absence

are considered withdrawn from the university under the assumption that they have decided to discontinue their program. Students removed for this reason may reapply for admission to resume their degree program; the application will be considered along with all other new applications to the degree program.

Students with a Graduate College approved Leave of Absence are not required to pay tuition and/or fees, but in turn are not permitted to place any demands on university faculty or use any university resources. These resources include university libraries, laboratories, recreation facilities or faculty and staff time.

#### CONTINUOUS REGISTRATION/ENROLLMENT

Of all the rules in this Handbook, there is one rule that is frequently broken unwittingly by students in the program. A student must be registered for a minimum of one graduate credit hour during each of the Fall and Spring semesters. (Summer enrollment is optional.)

Graduate students planning to discontinue registration for a semester or more must submit a **LEAVE OF ABSENCE** on their iPOS as described above.

This request must be submitted and approved BEFORE the anticipated semester of nonregistration. Students may request to maintain continuous enrollment without course registration for a maximum of two semesters during their entire program.

Students should contact their advisor as soon as possible if they will not be able to meet continuous enrollment.

#### TIMELINESS, PARTICIPATION, and COMMITMENT

Your success in the program will require you to consistently meet deadlines and scheduled meetings. To this end, the School of Applied Sciences and Arts has a strict deadline policy. Please allow enough time to account for potential technical problems submitting work online.

Remember that graduate classes require considerably more work than undergraduate classes. MLSt courses are considered "accelerated" courses, that presume a student's willingness to prioritize their coursework, regardless of family, other classes, or work obligations. Four classes in one semester carry a tremendous amount of required readings, researching, and writing. (Note that each semester has two sessions.)

**Maximum Time Limit:** All work toward a master's degree must be completed within six consecutive years.

Maximum Credit Limit: The program requires 10 classes (30 credits) for completion. On some

occasions a few students will take an additional two or three classes for various reasons. Students who take <u>more</u> than 12 or 13 classes will be removed from the program unless they receive permission from the director and/or assistant program director prior to enrolling for the additional classes. The goal is for students graduate without additional expense and time beyond what is needed.

#### **ACADEMIC PROGRESS**

As a graduate student, you are required to make systematic progress toward completion of your degree. You are responsible for verifying satisfactory progress policies as required by this program and the Graduate College. If you fail to satisfy the requirements, you may be dismissed from this program based on the academic unit's recommendation to the Graduate College. These policies are outlined below and detailed on the university's Graduate College website: <u>https://graduate.asu.edu/key-policies</u>

**Grades and Grade Point Averages (GPA):** Graduate students demonstrate academic excellence and commitment to their studies. Students in our program MUST maintain a minimum 3.00 grade point average (GPA) to maintain satisfactory academic progress and to graduate. The minimum 3.00 GPA must be maintained on all GPA's (Plan of Study (iPOS) GPA, Overall Graduate GPA, and Cumulative GPA).

- 1. The iPOS GPA is calculated on all courses that appear on the student's approved iPOS (with the exception of transfer credits)
- 2. Cumulative ASU GPA represents all courses completed at ASU during the graduate career
- 3. The Overall Graduate GPA is based on all courses numbered 500 or higher that appear on the transcript after admission to a graduate program or graduate non-degree. This includes shared coursework if in an approved accelerated bachelor's/master's program

The Graduate College policies on student GPAs can be found here: <u>https://graduate.asu.edu/sites/default/files/asu-graduate-policies-and-procedures-manual.pdf</u>

## ACADEMIC PROBATION

Probation Policy: A student may be placed on academic probation if:

- 1. The student's cumulative GPA falls below the 3.00 GPA requirement
- 2. The student receives a "C" or lower in a course
- 3. The student has more than two Incompletes since starting the program
- 4. The student fails to complete the program within specified time guidelines and does not meet milestones specified in the graduate handbook

Students will be notified by email when first placed on probation and will be required to complete a Probation Agreement with their advisor.

Every student has one semester to advance to good standing before termination is considered. Students will be notified by email if they are being recommended for withdrawal from the program. A student may appeal any action concerning academic probation and withdrawal by petitioning the program director within 10 business days, via email. Approval of the petition is not guaranteed.

Students who fail to meet satisfactory academic progress as previously described will be placed on academic probation and notified by mail and email. Details for each situation will be provided in the letter notifying the student that he/she is on academic probation.

The Graduate College will conduct a GPA audit at the end of each semester. Any graduate student with a cumulative GPA below 3.00 will be placed on academic probation. The student will receive a notification on their MyASU and an email from Leadership and Integrative Studies. Typically, students on academic probation will have one semester to be reinstated to good standing.

Students on academic probation may be withdrawn from their academic program upon recommendation of the Faculty of Leadership and Integrative Studies to the Graduate College.

For students placed on probation the previous semester who have met the condition of probation, the Faculty of Leadership and Integrative Studies will send a letter of reinstatement.

#### WITHDRAWALS

**Voluntary Withdrawal from ASU:** Students who wish to withdraw from their graduate degree or certificate program and the university must complete and submit a **Voluntary Withdrawal** form. Students must separately complete the appropriate forms with the University Registrar to withdraw from their courses. International students should contact the International Student and Scholars Center (ISSC) at: <u>https://issc.asu.edu</u> before submitting a Voluntary Withdrawal form, as it most likely will affect their visa status.

**Voluntary Withdrawal/Switch from a Graduate Degree Program:** Students who wish to transition from one graduate program to another graduate program should complete and submit a Voluntary Withdrawal form. Students should not take this action until they have been admitted to the other graduate degree program. Visit: <u>https://students.asu.edu/voluntary-withdrawal-form</u>

**Other Types of Withdrawal:** There are appropriate circumstances when students may need to withdraw from the university (i.e. medical withdrawal, compassionate leave). The policies for such withdrawals are the same for both undergraduate and graduate students. Types of withdrawals and procedures can be found at: students.asu.edu/drop-add. For course withdrawals contact the University Registrar's Office.

Should you decide to leave the program or change programs, contact Graduate Admissions, and follow their process. <u>https://graduate.asu.edu/policies-procedures</u>

#### **TRANSFER CREDIT**

Students admitted to the 30-credit-hour Master of Liberal Studies program may transfer up to 12 credit hours of coursework taken before beginning the program (referred to as pre-admission credits). Pre-admission credit hours must be approved by the degree program and the Graduate College. Students are responsible for alerting their graduate advisor that they plan on transferring in credits.

To qualify for preadmission credits, the courses must:

- be at a graduate-level
- have been taken within three years of admission to the ASU degree program
- have earned a grade of "B" or better
- not have been used toward a previous degree
- have been completed at a regionally accredited US institution or international institution officially recognized by that country

If a student in the program skips a Fall or Spring semester and falls out of the program, they could reapply but learn that their previous credits must be considered as pre-admission credits and are required to meet the above requirements.

Certain types of graduate credits cannot be transferred to ASU, such as courses taken at a noncollegiate institution, institutions that lack regional accreditation, for life experience, continuing education programs, workshops, etc.

Students must officially transfer in preadmission credit hours through the iPOS system for approval by the academic unit and the Graduate College office. Official transcripts from where the preadmission credits were earned must be sent to the Graduate Admission Services.

#### **Provisional Acceptance**

The Graduate College demands that applicants have a GPA of 3.0 or better. Unlike

undergraduate study, the majority of graduate students earn A and B grades. Grades below a B indicate a student who may not be ready for graduate study at this time.

However, the Master of Liberal Studies program on occasion will consider students with a less stellar GPA for provisional admittance. An applicant should address the lower GPA and explain why she or he is ready to do graduate-level work now. If the committee recommends a provisional admittance to the program and the Graduate College agrees, the student has two semesters to earn grades of B or better in all classes during the first year in the program. If the grades are lower, the Graduate College removes the student from the program.

#### **GRADUATION AND DEGREE CONFERRAL**

Students must apply for graduation at the beginning of the term in which they plan to graduate. Students may apply for graduation through your MyASU portal. Go to My Programs, under the Graduation tab.

Applying for graduation begins a review process essential for finishing the degree. The Graduation department will compare your Interactive Program of Study (iPOS) to your transcript. Classes are checked and matched by sequence and semester. (The right class in the wrong semester will be noted and brought to your attention.) It's essential to review your iPOS and make sure it is current before you apply to graduate.

Students who do not complete all requirements in the semester they intend to graduate will need to reapply for graduation the next semester; the application will not be automatically renewed.

Students must have their iPOS approved before they can apply for graduation. The application should be submitted online before the application deadline to avoid late fees. For more information, please visit <u>https://students.asu.edu/graduation-apply</u>

Graduation has some strict rules that must be followed. Read these rules carefully!

- The application to graduate should be submitted online before the application deadline to avoid late fees.
- Students who do not complete all requirements in the semester in which they intend to graduate will need to re-apply for graduation the next semester; the application will not be automatically renewed.
- Students must have their iPOS approved before they can apply for graduation.
- Students also must be enrolled in at least one class the semester they apply to graduate.

For more information: <u>https://students.asu.edu/graduation</u>.

If a student chooses not to attend the graduation or commencement ceremonies, they must still apply for graduation to earn their degree.

#### **Commencement and Convocation:**

Attending the graduation commencement or convocation is optional (but a lot of fun). If you choose not to attend the graduation ceremonies, you must still apply for graduation to earn your degree.

When you graduate, you are invited to attend two separate ceremonies during graduation week. Each requires individual RSVPS. You will not receive a diploma at either ceremony. Diplomas are mailed to your address six weeks or so after the end of the semester.

**Commencement** is the university-wide graduation ceremony led by the President of the University. (The Graduate ceremony is separate from the undergraduate event.) Commencement usually takes place on the Monday of graduation week.

**Convocation** is The College of Integrative Sciences and Arts' own graduation event. Graduates walk across the stage in front of a smaller audience. The master's diploma cover is distributed at convocation.

#### **STUDENT SERVICES and RESOURCES**

The charter of Arizona State University declares that the university is "measured not by whom we exclude, but rather by whom we include, and how they succeed." The university and the school are committed to providing every resource possible for students to succeed academically, personally, and professionally.

**ASU Libraries:** As a research university, ASU has an impressive library system spread across several physical buildings and campuses offering extensive online and hardcopy collections. The Tempe campus is home to the Hayden Library (main library on campus), the Music Library, the Design and Arts Library, and the Noble Science Library. While the library system offers books galore, you'll find that your student access to online databases has become an essential tool for academic research. The MLSt class in The Research Process teaches how to best use these materials and resources, and your Canvas course shells provide links as well. The link to ASU Library One Search can be found here: <u>https://lib.asu.edu/</u>

**Online Graduate Tutoring and Writing Center:** The university aids with writing and tutoring for a variety of subjects for graduate students. Both on-campus and online students may enjoy access to writing assistance. For complete details:

#### On campus & Online:

https://tutoring.asu.edu/student-services/online-writing-graduate-support

**Technologies:** The MLSt program requires that you have access to use of a computer with internet access, a webcam (hopefully with audio capabilities), and a web browser (such as Chrome, Firefox, or Safari), and ASU's Canvas platform.

**Zoom:** If your course meets via Zoom (either as a class, in groups, or in an instructor conference), you'll find your course Zoom link on the "MyClasses" section of your MyASU page.

There are a number <u>of very helpful resource links available to students</u> requiring assistance in learning Zoom skills. The ASU University Technology Office provides an excellent resource library: <u>https://uto.asu.edu/zoom-resources</u>

Here is a list of some of the technologies, programs, and platforms you are likely to encounter in MLSt courses:

- General computer access to create and upload photo and video
- Microsoft Office (PowerPoint, Word) (Note: Microsoft 365 is free for current ASU students)
- Adobe Acrobat Reader (free)
- Adobe Flash Player (free)
- Online platforms: Perusall and PowerNotes, Loom, Zoom, Peerceptiv, VoiceThread
- ASU and local libraries for film rentals, research and texts
- Reliable broadband internet connection (DSL or cable) to stream videos
- Webcam, microphone, headset/earbuds, and speaker

This is not an exhaustive list as technologies are always changing, but this provides a good accounting of the types of programs you may be using.

*Note:* A smartphone, iPad, Chromebook, etc. will<u>not</u> be sufficient for completing your work in an online environment. While you will be able to access course content with mobile devices, you must use a computer for all assignments, quizzes, and virtual labs completed in Canvas.

**ASU Counseling Services:** ASU Counseling Services offer professional, confidential, and time-limited counseling and crisis services for students experiencing emotional concerns, problems in adjusting, and other factors that affect their ability to achieve their academic and

personal goals. We will talk with you, help you identify solutions or support, and connect you with those services at ASU or in the community.

ASU Counseling Services are for any Sun Devil, regardless of race, gender, sexual orientation, age, student status, religion, ability, size, financial situation, any issue you're dealing with, or whether you've had counseling before. Something as simple as talking to someone can help you improve your grades and manage stress. <u>https://eoss.asu.edu/counseling</u>

#### Support is available 24/7.

**In-person counseling: Monday-Friday 8 a.m. – 5 p.m.** ASU Counseling Services, Student Services Building 234 Tempe, AZ 85287 480-965-6146

**After-hours/weekends** Call EMPACT's 24-hour ASU-dedicated crisis hotline: 480 921-1006

For life-threatening emergencies Call 911

**Financial Services:** As funding opportunities for MLSt students become available, we will let students know.

For all other financial questions, please contact ASU Financial Aid and Scholarship Services: <u>https://students.asu.edu/financialaid</u>

**Veterans and Military:** The Pat Tillman Veterans Center provides guidance and support for students who are veterans, active-duty military or military dependents. For more information, please call the office at 602-496-0152 or visit: <u>https://veterans.asu.edu/</u>

**International Students:** ASU's International Student and Scholars Center can provide support and answers to questions about visas, employment, scholarships and travel. To find more information or schedule an appointment with an ISSC advisor, visit the website: <u>https://issc.asu.edu/</u>

**Health and Fitness:** All ASU students enrolled in in-person programs have access to Sun Devil Fitness facilities on all campuses. For more information about facilities, membership and group fitness classes, please visit: <u>https://fitness.asu.edu</u>

For students enrolled in on-campus programs, information about health insurance and appointments with care providers, can be found on the ASU Health Services website: <u>https://eoss.asu.edu/health</u>

**Transportation and Parking:** Students may purchase parking and public transit permits through ASU Business and Finance. To learn more, visit: <u>https://cfo.asu.edu/parking</u>

#### **Student Accessibility Resources**

In compliance with the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504, and the Americans with Disabilities Act as amended (ADAAA) of 2008, professional disability specialists and support staff at the Student Accessibility and Inclusive Learning Services (SAILS) facilitate a comprehensive range of academic support services and accommodations for qualified students with disabilities.

<u>Qualified students with disabilities may be eligible to receive academic support services and accommodations.</u> Eligibility is based on qualifying disability documentation and assessment of individual need. Students who believe they have a current and essential need for disability accommodations are <u>responsible for requesting accommodations and providing qualifying documentation</u> to SAILS. Every effort is made to provide reasonable accommodations for qualified students with disabilities.

Qualified students who wish to request an accommodation for a disability should contact the Student Accessibility and Inclusive Learning Services (SAILS) by going to https://eoss.asu.edu/accessibility, calling (480) 965-1234 or emailing Student.Accessibility@asu.edu. To speak with a specific office, please use the following information:

<b>ASU Online and Downtown Phoenix Campus</b> University Center Building, Suite 160 602-496- 4321 (Voice)	Polytechnic Campus 480-727-1165 (Voice)
West Campus	<b>Tempe Campus</b>
University Center Building (UCB), Room 130 602-	480-965-1234
543-8145 (Voice)	(Voice)

**Title IX:** Title IX is a federal law that provides that no person be excluded on the basis of sex from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any education program or activity. Both Title IX and university policy make clear that sexual violence and harassment based on sex is prohibited.

An individual who believes they have been subjected to sexual violence or harassed on the basis of sex can seek support, including counseling and academic support, from the university. If you or someone you know has been harassed on the basis of sex or sexually assaulted, you can find information and resources at <a href="http://sexualviolenceprevention.asu.edu/fags/students">http://sexualviolenceprevention.asu.edu/fags/students</a>.

**Business Services/Student Accounts:** Student Business Services offer a variety of individual account services including tuition and billing, student refunds (including financial aid), receipt

and payment processing, support for past due accounts, third party sponsorship assistance and loan repayment. Contact: <u>https://students.asu.edu/payment-options</u>

**Sun Card:** Students must obtain an ASU identification card. The Sun Card is the official student ID for ASU and provides access to campus amenities and services, including secure buildings and elevators as needed. The Sun Card is located in the Memorial Union lower level. Visit: <u>https://cfo.asu.edu/cardservices</u>

ASU Online students will need to obtain an ASU Sun Card to utilize the library or computer services on campus.

#### **INTERACTIVE PLAN of STUDY (iPOS)**

The plan of study (iPOS) functions as a contract between the student, the academic unit, and Graduate College. This ensures that students are on track to finish their programs, and do not make expensive mistakes in enrollment.

Go to your MyASU page and complete the Internet Program of Study (iPOS) by listing classes taken from your transcript and your best guess on your future classes. It's easy to update the iPOS if you change your choices later.

Hit SUBMIT when finished. (Oddly, that's a common overlooked error with the e-form.) The advisor will review it, approve or deny it (if denied you will receive an email and comments as to why it was denied, and will have the opportunity to make changes to resubmit).

Once your iPOS is approved, it will be sent to the Graduate College for their official review. Each semester, you should compare your class choices with the iPOS document and update as necessary. Master of Liberal Studies students must submit an iPOS before enrolling for their third semester. It is best to submit your iPOS no later than the second semester. Approach an advisor for assistance on crafting and maintaining an iPOS.

#### **CONCURRENT DEGREES**

A student may pursue concurrent master's degrees with prior written approval from the head of the academic unit for each degree program and the Graduate College. A separate online application is required for each degree program. A maximum of 20 percent of the minimum total semester hours for the completion of both degrees may be common hours shared between the Plans of Study. The total number of hours common to both degree programs may vary from this maximum value only when the Graduate College has formally approved coordinated degree programs.

Coursework common to both programs must constitute a well-planned and meaningful part of each of the programs and may only include coursework completed after admission to both degree programs. In all cases, the guidelines below must be followed:

- The student must be enrolled in both programs each fall and spring semester to maintain continuous enrollment or must submit a Request to Maintain Continuous Enrollment form (through your MyASU portal). A Graduate College-approved Request applies to both degree programs; students may not be registered for coursework in either program.
- 2. Graduate credit transferred from another institution may be applied toward only onedegree program.
- 3. Culminating experiences (e.g. the MLSt Applied Project) cannot be shared between concurrent degree programs.
- 4. The six-year maximum time limit for completing degree requirements and graduation apply to each concurrent degree individually.
- 5. **Concurrent degrees** will attract program fees for all courses students are enrolled in. Permission must be granted by advising.

Note: Concurrent degrees with the MLSt are not common. They have the potential of increasing your tuition costs since different programs may have different costs. Research your potential costs before making concurrent applications.

## **COURSE DESCRIPTIONS**

#### **Core Classes**

Students take three core classes to help ensure smooth entry into graduate study with MLSt. The core classes teach research techniques, approaches to reading scholarly texts, and how to create logical arguments about ideas and concepts. You can take these in any order and within your first three semesters. The three core courses are listed below:

• MLS 510: Communicating in Complex Cultural Environments

Explores the complexity of communication as it functions across contrasting social and cultural contexts. Students study how we interact and communicate with those around us through our individual and collective cultures.

• *MLS 511: Advanced Liberal Studies and Worlds of Possibility* Explores the construction of knowledge and know-how from a variety of cultural and historical perspectives. Analyzes and applies the assumptions that inform various worldviews in real-world contexts.

#### • MLS 512: Exploring and Expressing Ideas

Guides students through the exploration and expression of ideas related to contemporary social and cultural problems. Emphasizes perspective taking from multiple points of view. Features questions related to the construction and collection of evidence and terms of analysis.

#### **Elective Courses:**

All elective courses must be at the 500-level minimum and are taken according to your interests which can vary student by student. Please work with your advisor to identify graduate electives.

## THE APPLIED PROJECT

The Applied Project is a 6-credit, two-part MLS 593 course and is the final effort created and submitted by a graduating MLSt student. This independent-study project is approved and mentored by a faculty member. The 6-credits are completed through the following two courses:

MLS 593: Design for Impact (3 credits)

MLS 593: Engage for Impact (3 credits)

All students are urged to begin thinking about their Applied Projects as soon as they enter the MLSt degree program, and begin sculpting their Program of Study accordingly.